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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Selene Constructions Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Selene Constructions Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the
Act, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, its loss and total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SA’s) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is tesponsible for the other information. Other information does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.




If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we atre
required to report that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other information is
obtained at the date of this auditor’s repott.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and fot preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
tecords, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from matOrial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also tesponsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a matetial misstatement when it exists, Misstatements
can atise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
teasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or etror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those tisks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the citcumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify




our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
teport. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial
Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (@ planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (if) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the Financial Statement.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
mattets that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure A’
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(8) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the putposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the paragraph h(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act.

(€) On the basis of the written tepresentations received from the ditectors as on 31 March 2025 taken on
tecord by the Boatd of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are
as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph
h(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
‘Annexure B’. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial repotting.




(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditot’s Report in accordance with Rule 11

iv.

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements as at 31 March 2025— Refer note 44 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2025.

Thete were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025.

(8) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
ot in any other petson or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediaty shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaties;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are matetial either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
tecorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any mannet whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaties;

(¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any matetial
misstatemnent. ‘

The Company has not declared and paid dividend during the year.

As stated in note 47 to the financial statements and based on our examination which included test
checks, the Company, in respect of financial year ended on 31 Match 2025, has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility at application level as well as database level and the same has been operated throughout the
yeat for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. However, the recording of audit trail
(edit logs) can be disabled using restricted privileged rights for direct data changes at database level.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with. Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention except that the audit trail at the database level for the
Company has not been preserved in the accounting software for the period from 1 April 2023 to
31 March 2024.

(©) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements

of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:




In our opinion and to the best of our information
Company did not pay any remuneration to its direc

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 005975)
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Place: Gurugram
Date: 19 May 2025

and according to the explanations given to us, the
tors during the year.



Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report

With reference to the Annexute A referred to in the Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year endeéd 31 March 2025, based on the audit procedures
performed for the purpose of teporting a true and fair view on the financial statements of the Company
and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and the books of account and
other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief,
we reportt that;

®

(i)

(if)

(a to d) The Company has no Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use
assets) and intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, clauses 3(D(@) to 3(i)(d) of the
Otder is not applicable.

(¢) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based
on vetification carried out by us, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(a) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based
on verification carried out by us, the management has conducted physical verification of
inventory at reasonable intervals during the year and no discrepancies were noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based
on vetification cartied out by us, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis
of security of current assets. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification cartied out by us, during the year, the Company has not made any investment in,
provided any guarantee or security or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured
to firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) and Companies. However, the Company has
granted interest free loan, unsecured to its fellow subsidiary company during the year.

(@) The Company has provided loans to companies. The details of the same are given below:
‘ (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Loans (refer note-13)

Aggregate amount during the year

- Others 1.20
(Fellow Subsidiary Company)

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date (gross of allowance for credit losses)
- Others 681.86

(Fellow Subsidiary Company)

(b) According to the information, explanation, and reptesentation provided to us and based
on verificatipn carried out by us, the Company has not made any investments in, provided
any guarantee, given any security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured
or unsecuted, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties
during the year but granted loans to its fellow subsidiary company (refer note 43). We
have not been provided with an adequate explanation of the benefits, if any, accruing to
the Company for giving loans, based on the information and explanation received, we are
unable to form an opinion as to whether the terms and conditions of the grant of such
loans are, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.




(iv)

I\

(vi)

(vi)

(c) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based
on verification carried out by us, in tespect on loans granted, the schedule of repayment of
principal has been stipulated wherein the principal amounts are repayable on demand and
since the repayment of such loans has not been demanded, in our opinion, repayment of the
ptincipal amount is regular. .

(d) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based
on verification catried out by us, there is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted to
company. Accordingly, clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based
on verification carried out by us, no loans or advances in the nature of loans granted by the
Company which have fallen due during the year, have been renewed or extended or fresh
loans granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to the same parties. Accordingly,
clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based
on verification carried out by us, the Company has not granted loans or advances in the
nature of loans, cither repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
tepayment except for the following loans or advances in the nature of loans to its Promoters
and related parties as defined in clause (76) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars All Parties Promoters Related Parties

Aggregate of loans/advances in nature of loan

- Repayable on demand (A) 681.86 - 681.86

- Agreement does not specify any
terms or period of repayment (B)

Total (A+B) 681.86 - 681.86
Percentage of loans/advances

in naturte of loan to the total 100% - 100%
loans

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, the Company has complied with the ptovisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in tespect of the loans and investments made, and
guarantees and security provided by it, as applicable.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification cartied out by us, the Company has not accepted deposits or deemed deposits to
which’ the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73
to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under, are applicable. Accordingly, teporting
undet para 3(v) is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act in respect of Company’s products/services and atre of
the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a
view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(@) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services
Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of




(vi)

(%)

customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and services tax, cess and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited to the appropriate
authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at
the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the dues outstanding of
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added tax, Cess
on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of dues | Amount Period to | Forum where
statute (in Rs. which the | dispute is
Lakhs) amount pending

relates
The  Central | Credit of EC June-15 to | Asstt
Goods & | and Higher cess 1.34 September-15 | Commissioner,
Service tax Act, | claimed as Audit-TI, Mumbai
2017 Service tax
Income  Tax | Income Tax 33.97 AY.2014-15, CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961 : 2015-16, 2016-

17 & 2017-18

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered
ot disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961(43 of 1961), that has not been recorded in the books of account.

(@) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or
borrowings and interest thereon payable to any banks and other lenders. The Company does
not have any botrowings from financial institutions or government.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and written representation
received from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures,
we report that the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender.

(9) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly,
reporting under para 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall exarnination of the financial statements of the company, we report
that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
company. )

(€) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or petson on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, the Company has not raised loans duting the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Otder is not applicable. - ’




*)

(xd)

(a) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based
on verification carried out by us, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally)
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to
the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
matetial fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed o reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this repott.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures petformed
by us, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the yeat.

(i) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.

(i)

(xiv)

(xv)

Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the'Company with the related patties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act, where applicable. Further, the details of such related patty transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS) 24, Related Patty Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

() According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business. :

(b) The internal audit is performed as per a planned program approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company. We have considered the repotts of the Internal Auditor for the
period under audit, issued to the Company till date.

According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
vetification carried out by us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance
with the provisions of section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the order are not applicable
to the Company.

(2) The Company is not reqired to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.




(xvi)

(xvi)

(xx)

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit,
the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) ate not
applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs.1,250.09 lakhs in the curtent financial year 2024-
25 and cash losses of Rs.1,372.61 lakhs during immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xviif) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Direcsots and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions and subject to the note no- 52(iii) of the financial statements,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one yeat from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due,

The Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 with regards to Corporate Social Responsibility
are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chattered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 005975

005975N

Dhiraj Kumar New Defhi
Partner %
Membership No. 571841 ’%D ACCOS

UDIN: 25571841 BMTERG 2209

Place: Gurugram
Date: 19 May 2025
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report

With reference to the Annexure B referred to in the Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 of even date.

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Selene
Constructions Limited (‘the Company’) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is tesponsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Finaricial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act. '

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAT and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and both, issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with refetence to financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial control system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud of error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly




reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessaty to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditutes of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Intetnal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future petiods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial controls with teference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
detetiorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material tespects, adequate internal financial controls with
teference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 005975

005975N

Dhiraj Kumar \ New Deihj

Partner .
Membership No. 571841

Place: Gurugram
Date: 19 May 2025



Selene Constructions Limited

Balance sheet as at

I ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Financial assets
Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)

Non-current tax assets (net)

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Loans
Other financial assets
Other current assets

Total of Assets

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital
Instruments entirely equity in nature
Other equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Provisions

Current liabilities
Financial liabilides
Borrowings
Trade payables
~total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
~total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions

Total of Equity and Liabilities

Summary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Fiem's Registration Number: 005975N

Dhiraj Kumar
Partner
Membership No : 571841

005975N

New Dethi

Place: Gurugram
Date: 19 May 2025

Note

GA

10
11
12
13
6B
14

154
15B
16

17A

18

19A
19B
20
21
17B

[DIN: 09643887

Ajay Kumar
Chief Financial Officer

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
( in lakhs) (T in lakhs)
287.02 -
3.70 3.70
20.66 22.20
311.38 25.90
239.67 166.57
- 234.29
80.93 88.69
673.16 1,318.56
533.30 697.66
229.25 219.54
67.84 44.28
1,824.15 2,769.59
2,135.53 2,795.49
9.80 9.80
11,915.19 11,915.19 .
(16,162.21) (14,912.32)
(4,237.22) (2,987.33)
10.79 11.21
10.79 11.21
2,751.09 1,930.51
17.78 5.84
1,616.81 1,806.21
44.24 84.19
1,106.49 1,444.58
825.55 500.28
6,361.96 5,771.61
2,135.53 2,795.49

For and on behalf of the board of directors

Om Prakash Prajapati

Director
[DIN: 09655081]

Ssbic

Surabhi Sangal

Company Secretary



Selene Constructions Limited

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended

Revenue

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Revenue

Expenses
Cost of revenue
Cost incuered ducdng the year
(Increase) / decrease in real estate properties
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation
Other expenses
Total Expenses

Profit/ (loss) before exceptional and tax
Exceptional items

Profit /(loss) before tax

Tax expense

Current tax (including earlier years)
Deferred tax (credif)/charge

Total of tax expense

Profit /(loss) after tax

Other comprehensive income

Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans
Income tax effect

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share
Basic })
Diluted (%)

Summary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

This is the statement of profit and loss refetred to in our report of even date.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 005975N

Dhiraj Kumar
Partner
Membership No : 571841

Place: Gurugram
Date: 19 May 2025

Note 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
@ in lakhs) ® in lakhs)
22 (87.78) 869.03
23 246.68 93.20
158.90 962.23
24
83.35 1,039.48
(73.10) 868.66
25 94.46 62.63
26 2.04 0.21
5 - 0.20
27 1,148.14 863.33
1,254.89 2,834.51
(1,095.99) (1,872.28)
49 (152.56) -
(1,248.55) (1,872.28)
28 - 60.21
- 0.34 (0.07)
0.34 60.14
(1,248.89) (1,932.42)
(1.34) (0.53)
0.34 0.13
(1.00) (0.40)
(1,249.89) (1,932.82)
29
(96.85) (149.85)
(96.85) (149.85)
4

For and on behalf of the board of directors

e
SooA ] a("

Ssatya) iffaar
Whole-tifne dlrector
[DIN: 09643887)

Ajay Kumar
Chief Financial Officer

Om Prakash Prajapati

Director
[DIN: 09655081}

Surabhi Sangal
Company Secretary

Ui



Selene Constructions Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
 in lakhs) ® in lakhs)
A. Cash flow from operating activities:
Loss before tax after exceptional item for the year (1,248.55) (1,872.28)
Adjustments for:
Property, plant and equipment written off - 0.57
Provision written back (84.09) -
Exceptional items (refer note-49) 152.56 -
Depreciation and amortisation expense - 0.20
Balances written back {69.68) 3.29
Interest income on income tax refund (0.53) -
Profit on redemption of mutual funds 0.12) -
Interest on optionally convertible debentures 0.01 0.01
Interest income on fixed deposit {60.65) (86.94)
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 3.55 2.35
Operating loss before working capital changes and other adjustments (1,307.50) (1,952.60)
Working capital changes and other adjustments:
Iaventories {73.10) 868.67
Trade receivables 234,29 93.08)
Current and non-current financial assets ©.72) 310535
Other current and other non-current assets (23.55) (156.31)
Trade payables (177.46) 209.98
Other financial liabilities 29.74 1.92
Other current liabilities (254.00) -
Current and non-current provisions 319.95 41.08
Cash used in operating activities (1,261.35) (769.79)
Income taxes paid (net) 2.06 3N
Net cash used in operating activities (1,259.29) (766.08)
B. Cash flow from investing activities:
Proceeds from Sale of Mutual funds, net 0.12 -
Loans given & received back, net 11.80 1,752.66
Movement in Fixed Deposits, net 359.58 -
Interest received on fixed deposit 59.46 86.58
Net cash generated from investing activities 430.96 1,839.24
C. Cash flow from financing activities: (refer note46)
Interest paid on debentures (0.01) ©.01)
Repayment of inter-corporate borrowings (1,357.20) (2,206.00)
Proceeds from inter-corporate borrowings 2,177.78 1,122.50
Net cash generated from/ (used in) financing activities 820.57 (1,083.51)
D. Decrease in cash and cash equivalents, net (A+B+C) (7.76) (10.34)
E. Cashand cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 88.69 99.03
F.  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E) 80.93 88.69
G. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents includes: (refer note-11)
Cash on hand - -
Balances with scheduled banks
- In current accounts 80.93 88.69
80.93 88.69

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements,

This is the statement of cash flow referred to in our report of even date

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 005975N

Dhiraj Kumar
Partner
Membership No: 571841

005975N
New Delhi

Place: Gurugram
Date: 19 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ajay KRumar
Chief Financial Officer

Om Pr.
Director
[DIN: 09655081]

ash Prajapati

Samably,

Surabhi Sangal
Company Secretary



Selene Constructions Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2025

A Equity share capital* ( in lakhs)
Particulars Balance as at Balance as at|
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Equity share capiral 9.80 9.80
B Instruments entirely equity in nature¥* R in lakhs)
Particulars Balance as at| Balance as at|
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Compulsory convertible preference shares 391519 3,915.19
tionally convertible debentures 8,000.00 8,000.00
Total 11,915.19 11,915.19
C Other equity” R in Iakhs)
Reserves and surplus
. Other components
Description 3 ) A
of equity General reserve Retained earnings Total
Balance as at 01 April 2023 26.77 - (13,006.27) (12,979.50)
Loss for the year - - (1,932.42) (1,932.42)
Other comprehensive income
Re—mensureri'nent on defined benefit plans (net of tax) - - (0.40) (0.40)
Transfer to general reserve (26.77) 26.77 - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - 26.77 (14,939.09) (14,912.32)
Loss for the year - - (1,248.89) (1,248.89)
Other comprehensive income
Re-measurement on defined benefit plans (net of tax) - - (1.00) (1.00)
Transfer to general reserve - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 - 26.77 (16,188.98) (16,162.21)

*Refer note 15A for details
**Refer note 15B for details
“Refer note 16 for details

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.
For Agarwal Prakash & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 003975N

Dl s

Dhiraj Kumar

005975M
New Dethi

Partner
Membership No : 571841

Place: Gurugram
Date: 19 May 2025

For and on behalf of the board of directors

[DIN: 09643887

Ajay Kumar

Chief Financial Officer

Om Prakash Prajapati

Director
[DIN: 09655081}

Surabhi Sangal

Company Secretary
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Selene Constructions Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2025

Nature of principal activities

Selene Constructions Limited (‘the Company’) having CIN: U70109DL2006PL.C151147 was incorpotated on 20
July 2006. The Company is engaged in development of real estate properties and all other related activities. The
Company is domiciled in India and its tegistered office is situated at Office no 202, 2nd Floot, A-18, Rama
House, Middle Circle, Connaught Place, New Delhi-110001.

General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘the Act’) - read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA?)), as amended and other
relevant provisions of the Act. The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods
presented.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR’ or R’) which is the functional cutrency of the
Company and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except where otherwise indicated.

Entity specific disclosure of material accounting policies where Ind AS permits options is disclosed hereunder.

The Company has assessed the materality of the accounting policy information which involves exercising
judgements and considering both qualitative and quantitative factors by taking into account not only the size and
nature of the item or condition but also the characteristics of the transactions, events or conditions that could
make the information more likely to impact the decisions of the users of the financial statements.

Entity’s conclusion that an accounting policy is immaterial does not affect the disclosures tequirements set out in
the accounting standards.

Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued Accounting Standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing Accounting Standard requites a change in the Accounting Policy hitherto
adopted.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 were authotized and approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 19 May 2025. The revisions to the financial statements is permitted by the Board of Directors
after obtaining necessaty approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act.

Recent accounting pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended 31 March
2025, MCA notified new accounting standard Ind AS 117- Insurance Contracts, which has no impact on the
company financial statements. Further the MCA has made certain amendments to Ind AS 116- Leases, in
particularly related to sale and lease back transactions, which has an applicability from 1 April 2024, and has no
significant impact on financial statements.

On 7 May 2025, MCA notifies the amendments to Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.
These amendments aim to provide clearer guidance on assessing currency exchangeability and estimating
exchange rates when currencies are not readily exchangeable. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 01 April 2025. The Company is currently assessing the probable impact of these
amendments on its financial statements.

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on going concetn basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on histotical cost basis except
for certain financial assets and financial liabilities and share based payments which are measure at fair values as
explaitied in relevant accounting policies. Fair valuations related to financial assets and financial liabilities are
categorised into level 1, level 2 and level 3 based on the degtee to which the mputs to the fair value
measurements are observable.




Selene Constructions Limited

Summaty of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2025

Summary of material accounting policies
The financial statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and measutement bases
summarised below. These were used throughout all petiods presented in the financial statements,

4.1 Current versus non-cuttent classification
For the putpose of Current / Non-Cutrent classification, the Company has reckoned its normal operating
cycle as twelve months based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets or
Inventories for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

4.2 Propetrty, plant and equipment (PPE)

Recognition and instial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comptises putrchase price,
borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s catrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Subsequent measnrement (depreciation and useful fives)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis
of useful lives (as set out below) prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

Asset class Useful life
Building — temporary structure 1 year
Plant and machinery 12 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at the end of each financial year.
De-recognition

An item of propetty, plant and equipment initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognised in statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognised.

4.3 Financial instruments
Financial assets

Recognition and initial measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset is also adjusted.

RY ubfeqmnt measurement

Debt instruments at amortised cost — A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

© The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows; and

¢ Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of ptincipal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal am%}wg ;dmg.




Selene Constructions Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2025

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method.

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or
the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Financial liabilities

Recognition and initial measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the
acquisition of the financial liabilities is also adjusted.

Subsequent measurement — Amortised cost
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Inttial and Sutbsequent recognition and measurement — Jair value
A financial liability is classified as fair value through profit and loss (FVTIPL) if it is designated as such upon

initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gain/losses, including any
interest expense ate recognised in statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged ot cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new lability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the tecognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

4.4 Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measutement and
recognition of impaitment loss for financial assets. The Company factors historical trends and forward looking
information to assess expected credit losses associated with its assets and impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires
measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit
losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.

Other financial assets
In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit tisk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses,
else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition, if the financial asset is determined to have
low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

Nﬁethi




Selene Constructions Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2025

4.5 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired,
based on internal or external factors. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset or the
cash generating unit is estimated. If such recoverable amount of the asset or cash generating unit to which the
asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If, at the
reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable
amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously
recognised are accordingly reversed in the statement of profit and loss.

4.6 Inventories

Land other than that transferred to real estate properties under development is valued at lower of cost or net
realizable value.

Real estate properties (developed and under development) includes cost of land under development, internal and
extetnal development costs, construction costs, and development/construction materials, borrowing costs and
related overhead costs and is valued at lower of cost ot net realizable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs of necessaty to make the sale.

4.7 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control is transferred and is accounted net of rebate and taxes. The Company
applies the revenue recognition criteria to each nature of the revenue transaction as set out below.

Revense from sale of properties

Revenue from sale of properties is recognized when the performance obligations are essentially complete and
credit risks have been significantly eliminated. The performance obligations ate considered to be complete when
control over the property has been transferred to the buyer ie. offer for possession (possession request letter) of
properties have been issued to the customers and substantial sales consideration is received from the customers.

The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the
transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring property to a customet, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties (for example, indirect taxes). The consideration promised in a contract with a customer may include fixed
consideration, variable consideration (if reversal is less likely in future), or both.

For each petformance obligation identified, the Company determines at contract inception whether it satisfies
the performance obligation over time or satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time. If an entity does
not satisfy a performance obligation over time, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time. A
receivable is recognised by the Company when the control is transferred as this is the case of point in time
recognition where consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required.

When either party to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the contract in the balance sheet as a
contract asset ot a contract liability, depending on the relationship between the entity’s performance and the
customer’s payment.

The costs estimates are reviewed periodically and effect of any change in such estimate is recognized in the
petiod such changes are determined. However, when the total estimated cost exceeds total expected revenues
from the contracts, the loss is recognized immediately.

Interest income

Interest income is recorded on accrual {fective interest rate (EIR) method.

o}
1
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Selene Constructions Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2025

Interest on delayed receipts, cancellation income and transfer fees from customers are recognized on accrual
basis except in cases where ultimate collection is considered doubtful.

4.8 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

‘The Company’s contribution to provident fund is charged to the statement of profit and loss ot inventorized as
a part of real estate project under development, as the case may be. The Company’s contributions towards
provident fund are deposited with the regional provident fund commissioner under a defined contribution plan.

Defined benefit plan

The Company has unfunded gratuity as defined benefit plan where the amount that an employee will receive on
retirement is defined by reference to the employee’s length of service and final salary. The liability recognised in
the balance sheet for defined benefit plans as the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) at the
reporting date. Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. Actuarial
gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability are included in other comprehensive income.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company also provides benefit of compensated absences to its employees which ate in the nature of long -
tetm employee benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to be
availed more than one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation
performed by an independent actuaty using the projected unit credit method as on the repotting date. Actuarial
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recorded in the
statement of profit and loss in the year in which such gains or losses arise.

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits comprise of employee costs such as salaries, bonus etc. is tecognised on the basis
of the amount paid or payable for the petiod during which services are rendered by the employee.

4.9 Share based payments

Share based compensation benefits are provided to employees via Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly
Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) (‘Holding Company’)
Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOPs). The employee benefits expense is measured using the fair value of the
employee stock options and is recognised over vesting period with a corresponding increase in equity. The
vesting period is the period over which all the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. On the exercise of
the employee stock options, the employees of the Company will be allotted Holding Company’s equity shares.

4.10 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present
values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:

® Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or

® Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually certain,
related asset is recognised.




Selene Constructions Limited
Summaty of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2025

4.11 Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the related
disclosures.

Significant management judgements

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the Company’s future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can
be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requites assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
detetioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Recoverability of advances/receivables — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates
observed over expected life, the management assesses the expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and
advances. ~

Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the
Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the
actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Significant estimates

Revenue and inventories — The estimates around total budgeted cost i.e. outcomes of underlying construction
and service contracts, which further require assessments and judgements to be made on changes in work scopes,
claims and other payments to the extent they are probable and they are capable of being reliably measured. For
the purpose of making estimates for claims, the Company used the available contractual and historical
information. The estimates of the saleable area are also reviewed periodically and effect of any changes in such
estimates is recognised in the period such changes are determined.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each teporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utilisation of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of undetlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instraments (where active market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing
estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. Management
uses the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved
in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)



Selene Constructions Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

5 Property, plant and equipment

@

()

X in lakhs)
Particulars Plant and Office equipment Computers  Furniture and Total
machinery fixtures
Gross carrying amount
As at 01 April 2023 32.58 1.69 0.99 0.85 36.11
Additons - - - - -
Disposals/adjustments during the year 32.58 1.69 0.99 0.85 36.11
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - - - - -
Additions - - - - -
Disposals/adjustments during the year - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 - - - - -
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2023 31.89 1.69 0.99 0.77 35.33
Charge for the year 0.18 - - 0.02 0.20
Adjustments for disposals 32.07 1.69 0.99 0.79 35.53

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Charge for the year
Adjustments for disposals

Balance as at 31 March 2025

Net carrying value as at 31 March 2024

Net carrying value as at 31 March 2025

Property, plant and equipment pledged as security

Propety, plaat and equipment have not been pledged as security for borrowings.

Capitalised borrowing cost

No borrowing cost has been capitalised on property,

plant and equipment.

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)




Selene Constructions Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

Note - 6
Other financial assets - non-current
A Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months=

*Bank deposits {exclusive on interest accrued) with banks of % 287.02 lakhs (31 March 2024; Nily
Country Planning, Chandigarh and CEQ Gurgaon Metropolitan Development Authority,

B Other financial assets - current
(Unsecured - considered good)
Security deposits - others

Note -7

Deferred tax assets (ney)

Deferred tax asset arising on account of:
Provision of employee benefits
Property, plant and equipment - depreciation

() The unabsorbed business losses amounting to T 14,599.62 lakhs (31 March 2024: ¥ 14,321.29 lakhs) on which no deferred
realisation of deferred tax asset in the near futue. Further, these losses are available for offset for maximum period of eight year:

(®) Captibn wise movement in deferred tax (assets)/habilities as follows (Refer Note 28):

are. pledged against bank guarantee given to Dakshin Haryana Bijli Vitran N

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
® in lakhs) ® in lakhs)

287.02 -

287.02 .

1gam, Director Town and

229.25 219.34
229.25 219.54
2.89 2.89
0.81 0.81
3.70 3.70

tax is recognised considering there is no probability which demonstrate
s from the incurrence of losses.

! Recogt;:lsed n Recognised in
Particulars 31 March 2024 ey . |statement of profic and| 31 March 2025
; comprehensive loss
income

Assets

Erhployee benefits 2.89 0.34 (0.349) 2.89

Property, plant and equipment - depreciation 0.81 - - 0.81
‘Total 3.70 0.34 (0.34) 3.70

Recognised in Recognised in
tat t of profit and
Particulars 01 April 2023 other [statementofprofitand) . 2024
comprehensive loss
income

Assets

Employee benefits 2.12 0.13 0.64 2.89

Property, plant and equipment - depreciation 1.38 - 0.57) 0.81
Total 3.50 0.13 0.07 3.70
Note -8
Non-current tax assets (ner)
Advance income tax, including tax deducted at source 20.66 22.20

20.66 22.20
Note -9
Inventories
A Real estate properties under development (at cost)
Cost of properties under development 81,133.83 80,589.60
Less: Transferred to developed properties (81,133.83) {80,589.60)
B Real estate properties - developed (at cost)
Cost of developed properties 81,133.83 80,589.60
Less: Cost of revenue recognized till date {80,894.17) (80,423.03)
239.67 166.57
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31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note - 10 ® in lakhs) (¥ in lakhs)
Trade receivables
Unsecured
Considered good
Others - 234.29
Trade Receivables- credit impaired 4.61 -
4.61 23429
Less: Impairment for trade receivables (espected credit Joss) (.61} -
- 234.29
As at 31 March 2025
Particulars Less than 6 | 6 months to| 1-2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 Loss allowance Total
months 1year years
() Undisputed trade receivables - consideced good - - - - - - -
(i) Undisputed trade receivables - considered doubtful (Having - - - - - - -
significant increase in risk)
(iif) Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed teade receivables - considered good - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed trade receivables - considered doubtful (Having - - - - 4.61 .61 -
significant increase in risk)
(vi) Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Lessthan 6 | 6 months to| 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 Total
months 1year years Loss allowance
(1) Undisputed trade receivables - considered good 109.41 - 23.71 50.03 51.14 - 124.88
(i) Undisputed trade receivables - considered doubtful (Having - - - - - - -
significant increase in risk)
(i) Undisputed trade receivables - credit i ipaired - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed trade receivables - considered good - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed trade receivables - considered doubtful (Having - - - - - - -
significant increase in risk)
vi) Disputed trade receivables - credit impaited - - - - - - -
Note - 11
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand - -
Balances with banks - in current account 80.93 88.69
80.93 88.69
Note - 12
Other bank balances
Bank deposits - with maturity of more than three months and upto twelve months* 673.16 1,318.56
673.16 1,318.56

*Bank deposits (exclusive on interest accrued) with banks of % 669.53 lakhs (31 March 2
Vitran Nigam (DHBVN), Guegaon and Haryana State Pollution Control Board (HSPCB),

Note-13
Loans - current

Loans receivables col d good - ed
Inter-corporate loans to related parties (refer note 43)
Loan receivables - credit impaired

Inter-corporate loans to related parties (refer note 43)

Less: Impairement for loans (expected credit loss)
Loan to Employee

Note - 4

Other current assets

Advance to employees

Mobilization advances

Advance to suppliers/service providers

024: T 938,67 lakhs) are pledged again;
Panchkula,

st bank guarantees given to Governor of Haryana, Dakshin Haryana Bijli

529.30 697.66
152.56 .
681.86 697.66
(152.56) -
400 -
533.30 697.66
040 065
45.22 032
2222 43.31
67.84 44,28
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Note - 15
A Equity share capital 31March 2025 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2024
i Authorised Number R in lakhs) Number R in lakhs)
Equity shate capital of face value of Z 10 each 1,000,000 100.00 1,000,000 100.00
100.00 100.00
ii Tssued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity share capital of face value of Z 10 each 98,039 9.80 98,039 9.80
_
9.80 9.80
———— e
iii Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Equity shares
Balance at the beginning of the year 98,039 9.80 98,039 9.80
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Less: Redeemed during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 98,039 9.80 98,039 9.80

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The holders of equity shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. In the event of liquidation of the

Company, the remaining assets of the Compaay shall be distributed to the holdets of equity shares in proportion to the number of shares held to the total equity shares outstanding as on that date. All
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets, except that holders of preference shares participate only to the extent of the face value of the shares.

V' 98,039 (previous year: 98,039) equity shares of the Company is held by holding company namely Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls

Real Estate Limited) and its nominees.

vi Details of shareholder holding more than 5% share capital
Name of the shareholder . Number of shares Number of shares
Embassy Developments Limited (Formery Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) (equity shaces)* 98,039 98,039
* fucluding nominee shares
vii Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters
Disclosute of sharcholding of promoters s at 31 March 2025 is as follows :
Promoter Name Share Held by Promoters
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Number of % Total of Number of % Total of Shares | % Change during the
shares Shares shares year
Embassy Developments Limited (Formedy Equinox India Developments Limited and eadier 98,039 100.00% 98,039 100.00% -
Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) (including nominee shares)
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2024 is as follows :
Promoter Name Share Held by Promoters
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Number of % Total of Number of % Total of Shares | % Change during the
shares Shares shares year
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited and ealier 98,039 100.00% 98,039 100.00% -
Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) (including nominee shares)
viii The Company does not have any shares issued for consideration other than cash during the immediately preceding five years. The Company did not buy back any shares during immediately preceding

five years.

B Instruments entirely €quity in nature

() Compulsory convertible p nce shares ('CCPS') 31March 2025 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2024
i Authorised Number ® in lakhs) Number  in lakhs)
Compulsorily convertible prefetence shares of face value of X 1,000 each 400,000 4,000.00 400,000 4,000.00
400,000 4,000.00 400,000 4,000.00
ii Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
0.0001% Compulsorily convertible preference shares of face value of Z 1,000 each fully paid up 391,519 3,915.19 391,519 3,915.19
3,915.19 3,915.19
iti Reconciliation of number of compulsorily convertible preference shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Compulsorily convertible preference shares
Balance at the beginning of the year 391,519 3.915.19 391,519 3,915.19
Add: Tssued during the year . . - -
Less: Redeemed during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 391,519 3,915.19 391,519 3,915.19




Selene Constructions Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

iv

vii

s

@

=

i

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to preference shares

0.0001% Compulsorily convertible preference shares of face value of T 1,000 each fully paid up. These CCPS are held by holding company namely Embassy Developments Limited (Founerdy Equinox
India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) and its nominees. These CCPS ace convertible into number of equity shares detecmined by dividing aggregate prncipal amount of
preference share capital by a conversion price of ¥ 1,000.

The holders of preference shares are eatitled to receive dividends at the rate of 0.0001%, but do not carry night to vote. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets, except that
holders of preference shares participate only to the extent of the face value of the shares.

CCPS are held by the Holding Company namely Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited).

Details of shareholder holding more than 5% 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Name of the preference shareholder Number of shares Number of shares
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited and eardier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) 391,519 391,519

Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2025 is as follows :

Promoter Name Share Held by Promoters
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Number of % Total of Number of % Total of Shares | % Change during the
shares Shares shares year
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited and earier 391,519 100.00% 391,519 100.00% -
Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2024 is as follows :

Promoter Name Share Held by Promoters
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Number of % Total of Number of % Total of Shares | % Change during the
shares Shares shares year
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developrients Limited and earlier 391,519 100.00% 391,519 100.00% -
Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) :

i The Company does not have any preference shares issued for consideration other than cash during the immediately preceding five years. The Company did not buy back any preference shares dusing

immediately preceding five years.

Optionally convertible debentures ('OCD") 31March 2025 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2024
Number ® in lakhs) Number (% in lakhs)

Issued and fully paid up

0.0001% Optionally convertible debentures of face value of € 1,000 each fully paid up 800,000 8,000.00 800,000 8,000.00
800,000 8,000.00 800,000 8,000.00

Reconciliation of number of aptionally convertible debentures o ding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Optionally convertible debentures

Balance at the beginning of the year 800,000 8,000.00 800,000 8,000.00

Transferred to equity on account of modification of terms during the year (refer note iii below) - - - ~

Balance at the end of the year 800,000 8,000.00 800,000 8,000.00

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to optionally convertible debentures

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company had issued 800,000 optionally convertible debentures {OCDs) of face value of % 1,000 each, bearing interest rate of 0.0001% per annum. These
debentutes were convertible into equity shares, at any time over the maturity period of 20 years . If holder does not exercise its tight of conversion, the debentures will be redeemed at the end of the
period of 20 years. These optionally convertible debentures were redeemable at the option of the holder, 2t any time over the maturity period of 20 years.

As per the revised terms, agreed with the debentuse holders and approved by the board of director in their meeting dated 7 February 2020, OCDs are convertible or redeemable at the option of issuer, on
or before the expiry of the term. OCDs are convertible in the ratio of one equity share for each debenture. OCDs are held by the Holding Company namely Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly
Equinox India Developments Limited and ealier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) and its nominees. Accordingly, these OCDs have been classified as instruments entizely equity in natwre.

OCDs are held by the Holding Company namely Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India Developments Limited anid eardier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited).

Note - 16 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Other equity ® in lakhs) ® in lakhs)
Reserves and surplus
General reserve 2677 26.77
Retained earnings . {16,188.98) (14,939.09)
(16,162.21) (14,912.32)

Nature and purpose of other reserves
General reserves

These are voluntary reserves kept aside the general purposés and can be considered as free reserves.

Retained eanings
Retained eamings is used to record balance of statement of profit and loss.

Note - 17
Provisions - non-current
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity (refer note 43) 8.14 9.01
Compensated absences (rgfer norz 43) 2.65 2.20
10.79 11.21
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B Provisions - current
Provision for employee benefits:

Gravity (refer note 43) 0.14 0.22
Compensated absences (refer note 43) 0.05 0.06
Provision for claims and compensation* (refer note 47) 825.36 500.00
825.55 500.28
* Movement during the financial year:
As at beginning of the year 500.00 -
Additions during the year 500.00 500.00
Paid/adjustment during the year (174.64) -
As at end of reporting period 825.36 500.00
Note - 18 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Borrowings - current ® in lakhs) @® in lakhs)
Unsecured loans
Loans from related paties# (refer note 44) 2,751.09 1,930.51
2,751.09 1,930.51
#Carrying nil interest rate at 31 Maxch 2025 (31 March 2024: nil) and repayable on demand.
Note - 19
Trade payables - current
A Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises™ 17.78 5.84
17.78 5.84
*Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006”) as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024
Particulars : 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
R in lakhs) R in lakhs)
9 the principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year, 17.78 5.84
1) Interest due thercon Nil Nil
i) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed Nil Ni
day during each accounting year;
1v) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the Nil Nit
year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act;
¥) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and Nil Nil
vi) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually Nil Nil
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.
The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.
B Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,367.36 1,522.73
Retention Money 249.45 283.48
1,616.81 1,806.21
Trade Payables ageing as at 31 March 2025
. . Outstanding for the year ended 31 March 2025
Particulars
Not Due Less than 1year lyearto 2 year | 2yearto3 year [ More than 3 years Total
) MSME - 17.78 - - 17.78
(i) Other than MSME 1,528.98 74.46 12.57 - 0.80 1,616.81
(iif) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Other than MSME - - - - - -
Trade Payables ageing as at 31 March 2024
. Outstanding for the year ended 31 March 2024
Particulars
Not Due Less than 1 year Lyearto 2 year | 2yearto 3year | More than 3 years Total
@) MSME ~ .84 ; . N 587
(i) Other than MSME 1,739.37 63.66 - - 3.18 1,806.21
(iif) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Other than MSME - - - - - -
Note - 20
Other financial liabilities - current
Expenses payable 44.24 84.19
44.24 84.19
Note -21
Other current liabilities
Payable to statutory and government authorities 2.12 82.78
Advance from customers 617.71 535.51
Other liabilities 486.66 826.29
1,106.49 1,444.58
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Note -22
Revenue from operations
Operating revenue
Revenue from real estate properties
Other operating revenue
Income from advisory services
Interest from customers on overdue balances
Service receipts

Note - 23

Other income

Interest income

Balances Written Back

Profit on redemption of mutual funds
Provision written back

Miscellaneous income

Note - 24
Cost of revenue
Cost incurred during the year

(Increase) / decrease in inventory of real estate properties

Opening stock
Closing stock

Note - 25

Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages

Contsibution to provident fund (refer note 43)
Bonus and ex-gratia

Note - 26

Finance costs

Interest on income tax

Bank guarantee charges
Other borrowing costs

Note - 27

Other expenses

Auditor's remuneration - as auditor (refer note (3) below)
Communication expenses

Corporate social responsibility expenses (refer note (i5) below)

Legal and professional charges

Rates and taxes

Repairs and maintenance

Brokerage and marketing expenses
Travelling and conveyance expenses
Claims and compensations

Property, plant and equipment written off
Miscellaneous expenses

Project handover expense

(i) Details.of payment to auditors
Payment to auditor
Audit fee *

*nclusive of applicably taxes

31 March 2025
(¥ in lakhs)

(105.84)

0.80
17.26
(87.78)

61.17
69.68
0.12
84.09
31.62
246.68

83.35

166.57

(239.67) (73.10)

10.25

82.49

1.13
10.84
94.46

0.00
2.03
0.01
2.04

II

0.24
0.11
43.37
48.38
29.34
26.80

510.89
0.40
488.61
1,148.14

0.24
0.24

.

31 March 2024
(T in lakhs)

782.58

66.08
.71
18.66
869.03

86.94
3.29

2.97
93.20

1,039.48

1,035.23
(166.57) 868.66

1,908.14

59.64
0.01
2.98

62.63

0.20
0.01
0.21

0.24
0.12
25.16
31.44
6.20

0.32
799.24
0.57
0.04

863.33

0.24
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(ii) Corporate social responsibility expenses

Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year is Nil (previous year ¥ 25.16 Lakhs). This amount paid to trust during the financial year 2023-24,

Particulars For the year ended 31| For the year ended
March 2025 31 March 2024
Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year - 25.16
Amount Contributed during the year NA 25.16
Short fall at the end of the year NA -
Reason for Shortfall NA NA
Nature of CSR activities NA  [Health & Nutrition
Detail of related party transactions NA NA
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note - 28 (@ in lakhs) ( in lakhs)
Income tax
Tax expense comprises of: )
Current tax (including carlier years) - 60.21
Deferred tax expense 0.34 0.07)
Tax expense reported in the statement of profit or (loss) 0.34 60.14

The major components of the reconciliation of expected tax expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of the Company at 25.168% (31 March 2024: 25.168%) and the

reported tax expense in statement of profit and loss are as follows

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate
Accounting Profit / (loss) befose tax from continuing operations
Accounting Profit / (loss) before income tax

(1,248.55)
(1,248.55)

At statutory income tax sate of 25,168% (31 March 2024: 25.168%) (314.24)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Tax impact of depreciation as per Companies Act -
Tax impact of depreciation as per Income Tax Act 0.65
Tax impact on unabsorbed losses 314.02
Tax paid in respect of eatlier year 0.00
Others (0.09)
Income tax expense 0.34
Note - 29

Earnings per share (EPS)

(1,872.28)
(1,872.28)

(471.22)

(0.05)
0.76
47115
60.21
©0.71)

60.14
—_—

average number of shares outstanding during the year including the number of equity shares that are issuable on the conversion of 2 mandatorily convertible instrument. Diluted
eamings per share is computed using the weighted average number of potential equity shares outstanding during the year including share options, except where the result would

be anti-dilutive.
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Profit / (loss) attributable to equity holders (% in lakhs) (1,248.89)
Add: Interest on Optionally convertible debentures 0.01
Profit / (loss) for basic and diluted earnings per share (1,248.88)
Weighted average number of equity shares during the year 98,039
Add: Compulsorily convertible preference shares 391,519
Add: 0.0001% Optionally convertible debentures 800,000
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted earning per share 1,289,558
Earning per share:

Basic }) 96.85)
Diluted ®) (96.85)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

(1,932.42)
0.01
(1,932.41)

98,039
391,519
800,000

1,289,558

(149.85)
(149.85)



Selene Constructions Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

Note - 30
Financial risk management

1) Financial instruments by category ® in lakhs)

. 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Particulars Amortised cost Amortised cost
Financial assets
Trade receivables (Net of allowance of expected credit loss) - 23429
Cash and cash equivalents 80.93 88.69
Other bank balances 673.16 1,318.56
Loans (Net of impairement) 533.30 697.66
Other financial assets 516.27 219.54
Total financial assets 1,803.66 2,558.74
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 2,751.09 1,930.51
Trade payables 1,634.58 1,812.06
Other financial liabilities 44.24 84.19
Total financial liabilities 4,429.91 3,826.76

ii) Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
For amortised cost instruments, carrying value represents the best estimate of fair value.

iif) Risk management
the related impact in the financial statements,

(A) Credit risk

a) Credit risk management
i) Credit risk rating

~

The finance function of the Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system. Internal credit rating is performed for each class of financial
instraments with different characterstics. The Entity classifies its financial assets into the following categories based on the assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the

class of financial assets.
A:Low credit dsk
B: Moderate credit risk

C: High credit risk

Assets under credit risk —

Credit rating  |Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A Cash and Cash Equivalents 80.93 88.69
A Other bank balances 673.16 1,318.56
A Other financial assets 516.27 219.54
A Trade receivables - 234.29
C Trade receivables - -
A Loans 533.30 697.66
C Loans 152.56 -

The risk parameters ate same for all financial assets for all period presented. The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an on-going basis throughout each reporting period. In general, definition of default is determined by

considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors.

Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring bankruptcy, other advance not recoverable or a litigation decided
against the Company. The Company continues to engage with parties whose balances are written off and attempts to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognised

in statement of profit and loss.

) Concentration of fimancial assets

The Company's principal business activities are development of real estate properties and all other related activities, The Company's outstanding receivables are for real
estate properties. Other financial assets majorly represents cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans given to fellow subsidiacdes and security deposit given for

business purpose.
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b

)

Credit risk exposure
Provision for expected credit losses
The Company provides 12 months or lifetime expected credit losses for following financial assets —

As at 31 March 2025 R in lakhs)
Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount net of impairment
carrying amount losses provision
Trade receivables 4.61 4.61 -
Cash and cash equivalents 80.93 - 80.93
Other bank balances 673.16 - 673.16
Loans 685.86 152.56 533.30
Other financial assets 516.27 - 516.27
As at 31 March 2024 (R in lakhs)
Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount net of impairment
carrying amount losses provision
Trade receivables 234.29 - 234.29
Cash and cash equivalents 88.69 - 88.69
Other bank balances 1,318.56 - 1,318.56
Loans 697.66 - 697.66
Other financial assets 219.54 - 219.54

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach
In respect of trade receivables, the Company considers provision for lifetime expected credit loss. Further, during the periods presented, the Company has made no write-
offs of trade receivables.

Reconciliation of loss provision — trade receivables

Reconciliation of loss. allowance Amount

Loss allowance as on 01 April 2023 -
Add(Less): Changes in loss allowance due to assets originated or purchased -
Modification of contractual cash-flows that did not result in de-recognition -

Loss allowance on 31 March 2024 -

Add(Less): Changes in loss allowance due to assets originated or purchased 4.61
Modification of contractual cash-flows that did not result in de-recognition -
Loss allowance on 31 March 2025 4.61

(B) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset, The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they
are due.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into
account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities.

( in lakhs)
31 March 2025 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 2,751.09 - - - 2,751.09
Trade payable 1,634.59 - - - 1,634.59
Other financial liabilities 44.24 - - - 44.24
Total 4,429.92 - - - 4,429.92
(% in lakhs)
31 March 2024 Less than 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 1,930.51 - - - 1,930.51
Trade payable 1,812.06 - - - 1,812.06
Other financial liabilites 84.19 - - - 84.19
Total 3,826.76 - - - 3,826.76

(C) Market risk

The Company does not have any price, interest rate (nil variable rate borrowings) and foreign currency rsks.
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Note - 31
Revenue related disclosures
A Disaggregation of revenue
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:

R in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from contracts with customers
() Revenue from operations - Revenue from sale of properties (105.84) 782.58
() Other operating income (income from setvice receipts and interest on overdue balances) 18.06 86.45
Total revenue covered under Ind AS 115 (87.78) 869.03
B Contract balances
‘The following table provides informiation about receivables and contract liabilities from contract with customers:
QR in lakhs)
Particulars. As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contract liabilities
Advance from customers 617.71 535.51
Total contract liabilities 617.71 535.51
Receivables
Trade receivables (Gross of allowance of expected credit loss) 4.61 234.29
Total receivables 4.61 234.29

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract liability is the entity's obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the entity has received consideration from the customer in advance. Contract assets (unbilled receivables) are transferred to receivables when the rights become

unconditional and contract liabilities are recognised as and when the performance obligation is satisfied.

C  Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:

R in lakhs)
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Contract liabilities Contract liabilities
Advances from customers Advances from customers

Opening balance 535.51 975.63
Addition during the year (28.25) 226.90
Adjustment on account of revenue reversed / (recognised) during the year 110.45 (667.02)
Closing balance 617.71 535.51

D The aggregate amount of transaction price allocated to the performance obligations (yet to complete) as at 31 March 2025 is % 617.71 lakhs (31
tepresents the advance received from customers (gross) against real estate properties. The management expects to further bill and collect the remain

the coming years. These balances will be recognised as revenue in future years as per the policy of the Company.

E  Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract revenue:

March 2024 : ¥ 535.51 lakhs). This
ing balance of total consideration in

(R in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contract revenue (105.84) 782.58
Revenue reversed / (recognised) from real estate properties (105.84) 782.58

(This space has been intentionally left blank).
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Note - 32
Details with respect to the Benami properties:
No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the entity under the Benami Transactions {Prohibitions) Act, 1988 for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Note-33

Undisclosed income

There is no such income which has not been disclosed in the books of accounts. No such income js surrendered or disclosed as income during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 in the tax assessments
under Income Tax Act, 1961,

Note - 34

Details of Crypto Cusrency or Virtual Cutren:

Profit or loss on transactions involving Crypto currency or Virual Cuerency No transaction during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024,
Amount of currency held as at the reporting date No transaction during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024,
Deposits or advances from any person for the purpose of trading or investing in Crypto Currency / virrual currency No transaction during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.
Note - 35

Ratio Analysis

The following are analyticat ratios for the year ended 31 March 2025 zad 31 March 2024

Particulars Numerator Denominator 31 March 2025] 31 March 2024 Variance Remarks
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 029 048 -40.25%/ Refer note A
Debt Equity Ratio * Total Debts Shareholder's Equity NA NA NA | Nat applicable
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earnings available for debt services Debt Service 0.92 0.88 4.90%| Refer note B
Retum on Equity (ROE) / Retum on investment Net Profit. After Taxes Average Share holders Equity 0.08 0.14 -41.99%} Refer note B
Inventory Tumover Ratio # Net sales Average Inventory NA NA NA | Not applicable
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio ~ Revenue Average Trade Receivable NA NA NA | Not applicable
Trade Payable Tumover Ratio Pucchase of setvices and other expenses Average Trade Payable 0.01 1.13 -99.47%)| Refer note B
Net Capital Tumover Ratio ## Revenue Working Capital NA NA NA | Not applicable
Net Profit Ratio § Net profit Revenue NA NA NA | Not applicable
Retum of Capital Employed {(ROCE) Earning before intecest taxes Capital Employed 0.84 177 -52.65%| Refer aote B
Retum on lavestment ™ Income generated from Investment Time Weighted Average investment NA NA N4 | Not applicable
Notes:

A- Varation is due to increase in borrowings.
B- In the real estate business, revenue along with the corresponding cost to sales is recognised on the point in time basis and hence, the inccease and decrease will not be directly ascertained basis increase/decrease in

business. Accordingly, the current year ratios are ot comparable with previous year.

* Ratio can not be calculated due to negative average shareholders funds during the current year as well as in previous year.
# Ratios can not be calculated due to negative average revenue during the current year.

## Ratios can not be calculated due to negative working capital during the current year as well g in previous year.

§ Ratios can not be calculated due to negative net profit after tax during the current year as well as in previous year.

* Ratios can not be calculated due to segative revenue during the current year.

“* Since this is not an investment company.

Note - 36
Wilful Defaulter;
No bank er financial institution has declared the company as "Wilful defaulter” during the year ended. 31 March 2025.aad 31 March 2024,

Note - 37
Details in respect of Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium:

During the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or shace premium or any other sources ‘or kind of funds) by the Company to oc

in any other persons) or entityfes), including foreign entities (1 diasies”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend ot invest in party identified by or on
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Bene ficiaries).

Dunng the year ended 3t March 2025 and 31 March 2024 the Company has not received any fand from any party(s) (Funding Party} with the understanding that the Company shall whether, dicectly or indicecdy lend or
invest in other persons or eatites ideatified by or on belalf of the funding party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behal€ of the Ultimare Beneficiares,

Note - 38
Relati ip with Struck off C
No transaction has been made with the company stnick off under section 248 of The Companies Act, 2013 ot section 360 of Companies Act, 1956 during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Note - 39

R of charges or sati: ion with Regi: of Comp

All applicable cases where registrati of charges or satisfaction is requited with Registrar of C: panies have been done, No cegi ion of sati ion is pending for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,
Note - 40

Compliance with number of layers of companies:
The company lias complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause {87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 and no layers of companies has been
established beyond the limit prescribed as per above said section / rules during the year eaded 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Note - 41
Loan or advances granted to the promoters, directors and KMPs and the related parties:

Particular 31 Masch 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

‘Type of Borrower |Amount of Loan or advance in the [Amount of Loan or advance in the Precentage to the total Loans and Precentage to the total Loans and
nature of Joan cutstanding nature of loan outstanding advances in natures of loans(%) advances in natures of loans(%)
® in lakhs)  in lakhs)

Related Parties {refer note no 13 for details)* 681.86 697.66 100.00%) 100.00%

‘Total 681.86 697.66 100.00% 100.00%

*These loans are granted to related parties which are' repayable on demand,
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Note —42
Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:

® To ensure Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, and

® To provide adequate return to shareholders

Management assesses the capital requitements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The

position, where net debt is equal to current borrowings — cash and cash equivalents — other bank balances.
Note —43
Related party transactions

Relationship Name of the related parties

(2) Related parties exercising control

Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox

Holding Company

(#2) Other related parties * ¥
Fellow subsidiary companies

Indiabulls Constructions Limited)
Citra Properties Limited

Key management personnel

*With whom transactions have been entered during the year/ previous year

(i) Statement of transactions with related parties

Vindhyachal Land Development Limited
Devona Constructions Limited (formerly known as

M. Ssatyajit Parrihaar (whole time director)

India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls
Real Estate Limited)

(R in lakhs)

31 March 25

31 March 24

Particulats

Holding
Company

Subsidiary
Companies

Fellow

Holding
Company

Fellow
Subsidiary
Companies

Inter corporate loans given /(received back), net
Vindhyachal Land Development Limited

Inter cotporate borrowings taken

Devona Constructions Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls
Constructions Limited)

Citra Properties Limited

Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India
Developments Limited and eatlier Indiabulls Real Estate
Limited)

Inter corporate borrowings repaid

Devona Constructions Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls
Constructions Limited)

Citra Properties Limited

Embassy Developments Limited (Formetly Equinox India
Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate
Limited)

336.00

(336.00)

(15.80)

2,177.78

(1,357.20)

1,122.50

(2,206.00)

(1752.66)

38.00

(38.00)

-

oo@gm

New Deihi
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Revenue from business management & support
services

Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate
Limited)

Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India

- 66.08

(ii) Statement of balances outstanding:

(R in lakhs)

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Particulars

Holding
Company

Fellow
Subsidiary
Companies

Holding
Company

Fellow

Subsidiary
Companies

Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox
India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls
Real Estate Limited)

Devona Constructions Limited (formerly known as
Indiabulls Constructions Limited)

Inter-corporate loans given
Vindhyachal Land Development Limited

Revenue from business management & support
services

Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox
India Developments Limited and eatlier Indiabulls
Real Estate Limited)

1930.51

820.58

681.86

1,930.51

76.65

697.66

Disclosures in tespect of transactions with identified related parties are given only for such period during which such

relationships existed.

Note — 44

Contingent liabilities and commitments

i) Summary of contingent liabilities (R in lakhs)

Patticulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024

Contingent liabilities, not acknowledged as debt, include:
Interest on Value Added Tax - 6.03
Credit of Education Cess and Higher Education cess claimed as Service tax- 134 134
Asst. Commissioner, Audit-1T, Mumbai, June-15 to Sept-15 ' '
Balance of Input Tax Credit in Tran1 as on 30 June 2017-Asst. Commissioner 27.95
CGST and Central Excise, Gurugram ) ’
Income tax matter for the assessment year 2014-15 to 2017-18 in respect of 33.97 33.97
which appeal have been filed with CIT A). ) ‘

if) There are certain Allottees of “Centrum Park, Gurugra
respective complaints and are pending adjudication befo

Forums, via, which they majorly alleged their grievance
the Company is contesting the same still a provision of

m” Group housing residential project who had filed their
re Haryana RERA, District Court Gurugram and Consumer

with respect to delay to the tune of T 826.00 lakhs. Though,
< 825.00 lakhs has alteady taken in the books of accounts.

Ne;v Dethi
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Apart from the above liigation, there is an arbitration matter filed by the Vendor against the Company whereby
alleging the non-payment of pending dues for the defective works done in the project. The total amount involved in

of the Company.

Based on the defence taken in these matters and the independent legal advice from the Counsels, the management
believes that there is a reasonably likelihood that the there is no material liability will devolve on the Company in
trespect of these matters or atleast liability will not go beyond the provision which has already taken in the books of
Accounts.

There are no other contingent liabilities and commitments to be reported as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Note - 45
Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan
The Company has made % 0.10 lakhs (31 March 2024 - 2 0.01 lakhs) contribution in respect of provident fund.

Defined benefit plan
The Company has the following defined benefit plans:

®  Gratuity (unfunded)
® Compensated absences (unfunded)

Risks associated with plan provisions

Discount rate risk Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the
liability.

Mortality risk Actual death and liability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the
valuation can impact the liabilities.

Salary risk Actual salaty increase will increase the liability. Increase in salary increase rate
assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.

Withdrawal risk Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change
of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact lability.

Compensated absences

The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for earned leaves. The amount of provision of Z 0.05 lakhs (31
March 2024 - % 0.06 lakhs) is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional tight to defer
settlement for any of these obligations. However based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees
to take the full amount of accrued leave or require payment within the next 12 months,
independent actuarial report, only a certain amount of provision has been presented as curtent and remaining as non-
current. The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 16.75 years (31 March 2024: 15.53 years).

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation: (R in lakhs)
31 March 2025 31 Matrch 2024

Actuarial (Gain) / loss on arising from change in financial assumptions 0.03 0.04

Actuarial Loss / (gain) on arising from change in experience adjustment (0.21) 0.25

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under: (R in lakhs)
31 Matrch 2025 31 March 2024

Current service cost 1.76 0.44

Interest cost 0.16 0.11

Actuarial gain on obligation 0.18) 0.29

Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 174 0.84
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Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as under:

(R in lakhs)

31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 227 1.43
Current service cost 0.71 0.44
Interest cost 0.16 0.11
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses 1.04 -
Actuarial gain on obligation 0.17) 0.29
Benefit paid (1.31) -
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 2.70 2.27
Bifurcation of projected benefit obligation at the end of the year in current and non-current (R in lakhs)
31 Match 2025 31 March 2024
a Cutrent liability (amount due within one year) 0.05 0.06
b Non - current liability (amount due over one year) 2.65 2.21
Total projected benefit obligation at the end of the year 2.70 2.27
For determination of the liability of the Company, the following actuarial assumptions were used:
Particulars Compensated absences
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate 7.15% 7.22%
Salaty escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality table Indian Assured Lives Indian Assu.ted Lives
Mortality (2012 -14) Mortality (2012 -14)

As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair

value of plan assets has not been presented.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial apptaisers. Discount
factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that
have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on

management’s historical experience.

Maturity plan of Defined Benefit Obligation (R in lakhs)
Year 31 March 2025 Year 31 March 2024

a April 2025 — March 2026 0.05 April 2024 — March 2025 0.06

b) April 2026 — March 2027 0.04 Aptil 2025 — March 2026 0.04

c) April 2027 — March 2028 0.04 April 2026 — March 2027 0.03

d April 2028 — March 2029 0.04 April 2027 — March 2028 0.03

e April 2029 — March 2030 0.04 April 2028 — March 2029 0.03

April 2030 — March 2031 0.04 April 2029 — March 2030 0.03

) April 2031 onwards 244 April 2030 onwards 2.04

Sensitivity analysis for compensated absences liability (R in Jakhs)

Sensitivites due to mottality and withdrawal

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 270 2.26
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 0.19) 0.14)
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 0.20 0.15
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 2.70 2.26
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 0.21 0.16
b) | Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % ,{*@,”@m (0.19) (0.15)
) %

i ‘% hence impact of change not calculated.
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Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as pet the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employees who
are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on
retirement/termination is the employee's last drawn basic salary per month computed propottionately for 15 days salary
multiplied for the number of years of service. Gratuity plan is a non-funded plan. The weighted average duration of the

defined benefit obligation is 16.75 years (31 March 2024: 15.53 years)

Actuarial loss recognised in other comprehensive income (R in lakhs)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Actuarial gain on arising from change in demographic assumption - -
Actuarial (Gain) / loss on arising from change in financial assumptions 0.25 0.15
Actuarial loss on arising from change in experience adjustment 1.09 0.37
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under: ‘ (R in lakhs)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current setvice cost 1.14 1.20
Interest cost 0.67 0.51
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 1.81 1.71
Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as under: (X in lakhs)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 9.23 6.99
Current setvice cost 1.14 1.20
Interest cost 0.67 0.51
Benefits paid (4.10) -
Total actuatial (Gain) / loss on obligation 1.34 0.53
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 8.28 9.23
Bifurcation of projected benefit obligation at the end of the year in current and non-current
(R in lakhs
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
a Cutrent liability (amount due within one year) 0.14 0.22
b Non - current liability (amount due over one year) 8.14 9.01
Total projected benefit obligation at the end of the year 8.28 9.23
For determination of the liability of the Company, the following actuarial assumptions were used:
Particulars Gratuity
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate 6.99% 7.22%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality table Indian Assured Lives (I;/{)(;r;?il;})f Indian Assured Lives (I;IOc;rzt?ilg

As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair

value of plan assets has not been presented.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount
factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that
have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions ate based on

management’s historical experience.

New Delhi
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Maturity plan of Defined Benefit Obligation (R in lakhs)
Year 31 March 2025 Year 31 March 2024
a) April 2025 — March 2026 0.14 April 2024 — March 2025 0.22
b) April 2026 — March 2027 0.10 April 2025 — March 2026 0.13
3] April 2027 — March 2028 0.11 April 2026 — March 2027 0.12
d) April 2028 — March 2029 0.11 April 2027 — March 2028 0.13
e) April 2029 — March 2030 0.12 April 2028 — March 2029 0.13
) April 2030 — March 2031 0.12 April 2029 — March 2030 0.13
2 April 2031 onwards 7.59 April 2030 onwards 8.36
Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability (R in lakhs)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 8.28 9.23
"a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 0.54) (0.53)
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 0.59 0.57
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 8.28 9.23
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 0.60 0.58
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (0.56) 0.54)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before
retirement and life ¢Xpectancy ate not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

Note-46
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities pursuant to Ind AS 7 - Cash flows

The changes in the Company’s liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

( in lakhs)
Particulars Current borrowings Total
Net debt as at 31 March 2023 3,014.01 3,014.01
Proceeds from borrowings 1,122.50 1,122.50
Repayment of borrowings (2,206.00) (2,206.00)
Interest expense 0.01 0.01
Interest paid 0.01) (0.01)
Net debt as at 31 March 2024 1,930.51 1,930.51
( in lakhs)
Particulats Current borrowings Total
Net debt as at 31 March 2024 1,930.51 1,930.51
Proceeds from borrowings 2,177.78 2,177.78
Repayment of borrowings (1,357.20) (1,357.20)
Interest expense 0.01 0.01
Interest paid (0.01) (0.01)
Net debt as at 31 March 2025 2,751.09 2,751.09
Note - 47
Audit Trail

As per the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notification, proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, for the financial year commencing 01 April 2023 every company which uses accounting softwares for

P&
Nﬁelhi
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The Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account for the year, which have features of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility at application level as well as database level and the same have been operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares except one software where audit trial (edit
log) facility at database level was not available. Recording of audit trail (edit logs) can be disabled using restricted
privileged rights for direct data changes at database level. Since the company has other necessary controls in place,
which are operating effectively, this feature will not adversely impact its data and audit log retention directly at database
level.

Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutoty requirements for record retention
except that the audit trail at the database level for the Company has not been preserved in the accounting softwares for
the period from 01 April 2023 to 31 March 2024.

Note — 48

Business Combination of holding company

The Hon'ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi Bench ("NCLAT"), on 7 January 2025, approved
the scheme of amalgamation of Nam Estates Private Limited ("NAM") and Embassy One Commercial Property
Developments Private Limited ("EOCPDPL") with Embassy Developments Limited ("EDL") (formerly known as
Equinox India Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) and their respective shareholders and
creditors ("Scheme") pursuant to sec 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions of the
Act, read with Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016. Pursuant to the NCLAT
Otder, EDL and NAM have filed the certified true copy of the court order with the respective jurisdictional Registrar
of Companies on 24 January 2025, thereby giving effect to the scheme ("Effective Date").

Subsequent to the scheme becoming effective, a few of the current NAM shareholders, namely JV Holding Private
Limited (JVHPL), four individuals, and two other entities (referred to as the "Promoter/Promoter Group"), became
the largest shareholders of the EDL, the company's holding company.

Note — 49
Exceptional item for the year ended 31 March 2025 includes impairment of loans and advances of T 152.56 lakhs as per
the provisions of Ind AS 109.

Note — 50

Segment reporting

The Company's primaty business segment is reflected based on principal business activities catried on by the Company
Le. development of real estate properties and all other related activities which as per Ind AS 108 on ‘Operating
Segments’ is considered to be the only reportable business segment. The Company derives its major revenues from sale
of real estate properties and its customers are widespread. The Company is operating in India which is considered as a
single geographical segment.

Note — 51

The Hon'ble Supteme Court India has passed a judgement dated 28 February 2019 and it was held that basic wages, for
the purpose of provident fund, to include allowances which are common for all employees. However, there is
uncertainty with respect to the applicability of the judgement and petiod from which the same applies. Cutrrently, the
Company has not considered any impact in these financial statements.

Note — 52
Other matters

(i) The Company has not entered into any derivative instrument duting the year. The Company does not have any
foreign currency exposutes towards receivables, payables or any other derivative instrument that have not been hedged.

(ii) In respect of amounts as mentioned under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, there were no dues required to
be credited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.
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(iii) The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary company of Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India
Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited, whether directly or indirectly which is having a net
worth of ¥ 1,017,098.00 lakhs. The Company will get all necessary support financially and otherwise from its holding
company and thus, the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

(iv) Previous year figures have been regrouped and/or reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to those of the

cutrent year grouping and/or classification.
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